
REGULAR MEETING 
OF  

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD 
 

3301 Laurel Canyon Road 
Santa Barbara, CA 93105 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Monday, April 27, 2015 
 

2:00 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL  
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT (Public may address the Board on any subject matter not on the agenda 
and within the Board’s jurisdiction.  See “Notice to the Public” below.  Please make your 
comments from the podium once acknowledged by the President of the Board.) 

   
3. VERBAL REPORTS FROM BOARD COMMITTEES 

Receive verbal information regarding the following committee meetings: 
• Administrative Committee Meeting – April 6, 2015 
• Ad Hoc Drought Contingency Committee Meeting – April 6, 2015 
• Fisheries Committee Meeting – April 14, 2015 

     
4. CONSENT AGENDA (All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be 

approved or rejected in a single motion.  Any item placed on the Consent Agenda may be removed 
and placed on the Regular Agenda for discussion and possible action upon the request of any 
Board Member.) 
Action:  Recommend Approval of Consent Agenda by motion and roll call vote of the Board: 

 
   a. Minutes March 23, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 

  b. Investment of Funds 
• Financial Reports 
• Investment Reports 

   c. Payment of Claims 
   d. Progress Report on Lake Cachuma Oak Tree Program 
   e. Fisheries Division Report 
   f. Operations Division Report 
   g. Monthly Cachuma Project Reports 
   h. Operations Division Projects Current Fiscal Year 
    i. North Portal Jet Flow Spool Design and Purchase 
    ii. Elevator Electric Control Panel Replacement 
    iii. V-Ditch Project 
    iv. Open Air Vent Rehabilitation Project 
    v. Vehicle Purchases 
   i. Risk Analysis and Optimization Proposal 
  

  



5. IRWMP PROPOSITION 84 GRANT FUNDING ALLOCATION  
Action:  For Discussion and Possible action; approval by motion and roll call vote of the Board 
 

6. FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 PROPOSED DRAFT OPERATING BUDGET 
Action:  Adopt Fiscal Year 2015-16 Operating Budget, Infrastructure Improvement Plan (IIP) and 
Habitat Improvement Plan (HIP): 

1. Draft Fiscal Year 2015-16 Operating Budget 
2. Draft Operations Division IIP 
3. Draft Fisheries Division HIP 

 
7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Receive information from the General Manager on topics pertaining to COMB, including but not 
limited to the following: 

• USBR Site Inspection (Category 1 – Cross Connection Status) 
• NP Elevator Rehabilitation 
• Santa Barbara County Drought Task Force (DTF) 
• Encroachment 
• Drought Emergency Pumping Facility Project 

1. Construction Status 
2. Grant Funding 

• COMB Office Buildings 
• Division Manager Comments 

  
8. DIRECTORS’ REQUESTS FOR AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 

 
9. [CLOSED SESSION]:  CONFERENCE WITH  LEGAL COUNSEL:  EXISTING AND 

POTENTIAL LITIGATION 
 

a. [Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4)] 
Name of case:  California Trout, Inc. v. United States Bureau of Reclamation et 
al.,United States District Court, CDCA, Case No., 2:14-CV-7744 
 

   b.  [Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)] 
Name of case:  Arnold Edmund Keir Nash and Marguerite Bouraad Nash v.  Cachuma 
Operation & Maintenance Board, Santa Barbara Superior Court, 
Case No., 15-CV-00499 
 

c.  [Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)] 
Name of case:  Randy F. Ondracek and Victoria K. Ondracek v. Cachuma Operation 
& Maintenance Board, Santa Barbara Superior Court, 
Case No., 15-CV-00500 

 
10. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 

[Government Code Section 54957.7] 
Disclosure of actions taken in closed session, as applicable 
[Government Code Section 54957.1] 

 
11. MEETING SCHEDULE 

• May 18, 2015 at 2:00 P.M., COMB Office 
• Board Packages Available on COMB Website  

www.cachuma-board.org 

  

http://www.cachuma-board.org/


12. COMB ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE TO PUBLIC 
 

Posting of Agenda:  This agenda was posted at COMB’s offices, located at 3301 Laurel Canyon Road, Santa Barbara, California, 93105 and on 
COMB’s website, in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2.  The agenda contains a brief general description of each item to be considered 
by the Governing Board.  The Board reserves the right to modify the order in which agenda items are heard.  Copies of staff reports or other written 
documents relating to each item of business are on file at the COMB offices and are available for public inspection during normal business hours.  A 
person with a question concerning any of the agenda items may call COMB’s General Manager at (805) 687-4011. 
 
Written materials:  In accordance with Government Code Section 54957.5, written materials relating to an item on this agenda which are distributed to 
the Governing Board less than 72 hours (for a regular meeting) or 24 hours (for a special meeting) will be made available for public inspection at the 
COMB offices during normal business hours.  The written materials may also be posted on COMB’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the 
documents before the scheduled meeting. 
 
Public Comment:  Any member of the public may address the Board on any subject within the jurisdiction of the Board that is not scheduled for as an 
agenda item before the Board.  The total time for this item will be limited by the President of the Board.  The Board is not responsible for the content or 
accuracy of statements made by members of the public.  No action will be taken by the Board on any Public Comment item.   
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to review agenda materials or 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board office at (805) 687-4011 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting 
to enable the Board to make reasonable arrangements. 
 
Note:  If you challenge in court any of the Board’s decisions related to the listed agenda items you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 
someone else raised at any public hearing described in this notice or in written correspondence to the Governing Board prior to the public hearing. 

  



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD 
 

Administrative Committee Meeting 
 

3301 Laurel Canyon Road 
Santa Barbara, CA 93105 

 
Monday, April 6, 2015 

10:00 A.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Public Comment (Public may address the Board on any subject matter not on the 

agenda and within the Board’s jurisdiction) 
 
3. COMB Benefits Discussion (For Discussion) 

 
4. IRWMP Grant Funding Allocation (For Discussion) 

 
5. Draft FY 2015-16 COMB Operating Budget 

a. Draft Operations Division Infrastructure Improvement Plan (IIP) 
b. Draft Fisheries Division Habitat Improvement Plan (HIP) 

 
6. Operations Division Projects Current Fiscal Year 

a. North Portal Jet Flow Spool Design and Purchase 
b. Elevator Electric Control Panel Replacement 
c. V-Ditch Project 
d. Open Air Vent Rehabilitation Project 
e. Vehicle Purchases 

  
7. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[This Agenda was Posted at 3301 Laurel Canyon Road,  
Santa Barbara, CA. and Notices and Delivered in  
Accordance with Section 54954.1 and .2 of the  

Government Code] 

Item #3 
Page 1



 
CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD 

 
Ad Hoc Drought Contingency Committee Meeting 

 
3301 Laurel Canyon Road 
Santa Barbara, CA 93105 

 
Monday, April 6, 2015 

 
Upon Adjournment of the  
Administrative Committee 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Public Comment (Public may address the Board on any subject matter not on the 

agenda and within the Board’s jurisdiction) 
 

3. Emergency Pumping Facilities Project 
a. Budget Review 
b. Disposition of Pipe 

 
4. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[This Agenda was Posted at 3301 Laurel Canyon Road,  
Santa Barbara, CA. and Notices and Delivered in  
Accordance with Section 54954.1 and .2 of the  

Government Code.] 

Item #3 
Page 2



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD 
Fisheries Committee Special Meeting 

 
3301 Laurel Canyon Road 
Santa Barbara, CA 93105 

 
Tuesday, April 14, 2015 

10:00 AM 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Public Comment (Public may address the Board on any subject matter not on 

the agenda and within the Board’s jurisdiction) 
 

3. RFPs for Risk Analysis and Optimization of the LSYR Migrant Trapping 
Program Study – For discussion and to provide direction to staff as 
appropriate 
 

4. Trust Fund and Renewal Fund 5-Year Plan – For discussion 
 

5. Adjournment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[This Agenda was Posted at 3301 Laurel Canyon Road,  
Santa Barbara, CA. and Notices and Delivered in  
Accordance with Section 54954.1 and .2 of the  

Government Code.] 

Item #3 
Page 3



 
 
 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
of the 

CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD 
 

held at  
3301 Laurel Canyon Road, Santa Barbara, CA 

Monday, March 23, 2015 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call 
 
  The meeting was called to order at 2:02 p.m. by President Lauren Hanson who chaired 

the meeting.  Those in attendance were: 
 
Directors present: 
  Lauren Hanson   Goleta Water District 

Doug Morgan   Montecito Water District 
Kevin Walsh   SYR Water Conservation District, ID No. 1  
Dale Francisco  City of Santa Barbara  

 Polly Holcombe  Carpinteria Valley Water District 
 
Others present: 

Randall Ward Joshua Haggmark 
Janet Gingras Lindsay Griffin 
Dave Stewart Mitchell White 
Tim Robinson Ruth Snodgrass 
Adelle Capponi Megan Emami 
Jane Usher Phil Walker 
  

At the February Regular Board meeting, Director Morgan requested the 
opportunity to meet COMB’s two new Operations Division employees.  Randall 
Ward introduced Water Service Worker I Thomas Cortez and Daniel Silva.  The 
Board welcomed them to COMB. 
   

2. Public Comment 
 

Phil Walker commented on previous years when Lake Cachuma filled and spilled; the 
drought; pumping; bathymetric survey; and, a recent article that appeared in the LA 
Times regarding Los Angeles Mayor Eric Garcetti’s earthquake plan.   
 

3. Consent Agenda 
 a. Minutes   

February 23, 2015 Regular Board Meeting  
b. Investment Funds 
 Financial Reports 
 Investment Reports 

 c. Payment of Claims 
 d. Progress Report on Lake Cachuma Oak Tree Program 

 

Item #4a 
Page 1



 
 
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board  
Board of Directors Meeting 
March 23, 2015 
 
 e. Fisheries Division Report 
 f. Operations Division Report 
 g. Monthly Cachuma Project Reports 
 h. Resolution No. 593 Acceptance of California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

Grant for Fish Passage Improvement Project Quiota Creek Crossing 3 
 i. Resolution No. 594 Acceptance of California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

Grant for Fish Passage Improvement Project Quiota Creek Crossing 0a and 
0b 

 j. Approval to Apply for Grant Funding with Department of Fish and Wildlife 
for Fish Improvement Passage Project Quiota Creek Crossing 4; and, 
Approve Obligation for a COMB $50,000 Construction Match 

 k. Resolution No. 595 Expressing Appreciation and Gratitude to Ruth E. 
Snodgrass Upon Her Retirement 

 
President Hanson removed Item k for separate consideration.  Items h, i and j were 
removed for clarification.  Director Walsh stated that he would be voting ‘NO’ for Items 
c, h, i and j; and explained the reason for his vote (h, i & j) noting that the information 
specific to these items, while he agrees with the projects, had not been presented to ID#1 
for review as required by the Fish Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).   Director 
Morgan noted that Items h and i are merely accepting the grants that have been issued.  
President Hanson stated that these items went before the Fisheries Committee for full 
review prior to presentation and recommendation to the Board at this meeting; Item j in 
particular follows a long established process successfully employed by COMB on 
previous grant submittals.  Mr. Ward echoed that Item j only authorizes staff to apply for 
the grant; any funds associated with the project would be presented to the Administrative 
Committee for review and ultimate approval by the Board.  Director Walsh reiterated 
that while he agrees with the projects, because the process according to the MOU was 
not followed, ID#1 may feel no obligation to participate. 
 
Following a lengthy discussion, President Hanson confirmed Director Francisco’s 
motion to approve Items a through j of the Consent Agenda, seconded by Director 
Morgan, and passed by roll call vote as follows:   
 
Items 3a, b, c, d, e, f, g, h, and i: 6/1/0 
Ayes:  Morgan, Holcombe, Francisco, Hanson  
Nayes:  Walsh 
Abstain/Absent: None 
 
Item 3k was introduced by President Hanson who expressed appreciation to Ruth 
Snodgrass for her years of service and being a part of this agency.   Mr. Ward read the 
Resolution and presented it to Ms. Snodgrass.   
 
Director Morgan moved approval of Item 3k, seconded by Director Francisco, and 
passed by roll call vote as follows: 
 
Item 3k: 7/0/0 
Ayes:  Morgan, Walsh, Holcombe, Francisco, Hanson  
Nayes:  None 
Abstain/Absent: None 

Item #4a 
Page 2



 
 
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board  
Board of Directors Meeting 
March 23, 2015 
 

4. Appointment of Representative to Cachuma Project Trust Fund and Renewal 
Fund Committee and Betterment Fund Use of Funds Discussion 

  
Randy Ward, General Manager highlighted information in the memo as included in the 
board packet.     
 
Following consideration on the history, dynamics and functions of the respective funds, 
Director Francisco moved to approve the appointment of the Administrative Manager to 
serve as the Representative to the Committee as recommended, seconded by Director 
Morgan.  President Hanson put the vote all in favor: Aye; all Opposed; motion carried 
5/1/1 as follows: 
 
Ayes:  Holcombe, Francisco, Hanson  
Nayes:  Walsh 
Abstain/Absent: Morgan 
 

5. Verbal Reports From Board Committees 
 
• Fisheries Committee Meeting, March 5, 2015: President Hanson noted that the 

Committee met with Tim Robinson, Fisheries Division Manager.  Information was 
reviewed on the annual monitoring reports; data sharing; the nexus between the 
USBR and tributary restoration projects; a status report on pending projects on 
Quiota Creek; trapping efforts; weather effects on seasonal monitoring; and, the 
Hilton Creek Watering System.  Lastly, Mr. Robinson offered to take the Board, 
Manager’s or their staff on a tour of the projects that have been completed to-date.  

• Operations Committee Meeting, March 6, 2015:  Director Francisco stated the 
Committee reviewed the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP); stating it was a very 
straight forward, very well thought-out plan and incorporated the suggestions that he 
and Director Morgan had made.  Additionally, Director Morgan noted that due to the 
drought, projects necessitating SCC shut down, be separated out from other projects 
that don’t require shut down and undertake those at optimal periods.  Randall Ward 
responded that project substitution, other than those of an emergency nature, would 
be addressed and prioritized.  The CIP has been distributed to the General Manager’s 
for review and comment.  Following manager review, the CIP will go before the 
Administrative Committee for the financial component review and approval.   
Lastly, President Hanson reminded everyone that going forward, all Committee 
Meeting Agenda’s will be forwarded to the Directors for their information.  This 
stems from a request by Director Holcombe and Director Walsh. 

 
6. General Manager’s Report 

 
Randall Ward, General Manager, highlighted his report as included in the board packet.    
• USBR Site Inspection:  The remaining Member Unit survey and report was completed 

and has been forwarded to the USBR.  No remediation was found necessary 
according the Certified Cross Connection Inspector. 

• NP Elevator:  Shortly after inspection and permitting was received, it was discovered 
that a board within the control panel was faulty.  Due to the age of the panel, it was 
not included in the rehabilitation efforts, but deemed safely operable by COMB’s 
engineering consultant.  Replacement options are currently under review.  A 

Item #4a 
Page 3



 
 
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board  
Board of Directors Meeting 
March 23, 2015 
 

proposal to replace the faulty panel will be brought before the Administrative 
Committee, and then presented to the Board for consideration and approval at the 
April regular board meeting. 

• Santa Barbara County Drought Task Force (DTF):  Project updates continue.   
• Encroachment:  COMB and County staff continue to work in concert to research and 

collect property owner information, some of which is rather old in nature and not 
located on modern resources, such as computerized records.   

• Drought Contingency Pumping Facility Project 
1) Construction Status: Pumps are tested and exercised monthly; the system 

remains in stand-by mode until operations become necessary; pipe retention 
options continue to be reviewed and a report outlining those options and 
resulting costs will go before the Board when fully obtained. 

2) Grant Funding:  The County of Santa Barbara is in the process of formally 
accepting the Proposition 84 Grant.  Invoice development for the Department of 
Water Resources (DWR) continues.   

• Infrastructure Improvement Plan (IIP):  This was distributed to Member Unit General 
Manager’s for review and comment.  These will be incorporated into the document, 
presented to the Administrative Committee, then the full Board for review. 

• COMB Office Buildings:  Modular office replacement options and analysis efforts 
continue.  Once finalized, the Administrative Committee will review the findings 
and present recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval.   

• Division Manager Comments:   Tim Robinson, Fisheries Division Manager, 
highlighted information from his report as included in the board packet.    

 
7. Directors’ Requests for Agenda Items for Next Meeting 

 
Director Morgan requested the Administrative Committee include a discussion on 
benefits. 

 
8. [Closed Session]:  Conference with Legal Counsel:  Existing and Potential  

 Litigation 
  

a.  [Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4)] 
Name of case:  California Trout, Inc. v. United States Bureau of Reclamation et 
al., United States District Court, CDCA, Case No. 2:14-CV-7744 

 
   The Board went into closed session at 3:55 p.m. 
 

9. Reconvene Into Open Session 
   [Government Code Section 54957.7] 
   Disclosure of actions taken in closed session, as applicable 
   [Government Code Section 54957.1] 
  
 The Board came out of closed session at 4:15 p.m. 
 
 There was no report out of closed session. 

 
 
 

Item #4a 
Page 4



 
 
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board  
Board of Directors Meeting 
March 23, 2015 
 

10. Meeting Schedule 
●The next regular Board meeting will be held April 27, 2015 at 2:00 p.m. 
●The Agendas and Board Packets are available on the COMB website at  

www.cachuma-board.org 
 

11. COMB Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:15 p.m. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Randall Ward, Secretary of the Board 
 
 

APPROVED: 
 

 
________________________________ 
Lauren Hanson, President of the Board       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  Approved 

 Unapproved 

Item #4a 
Page 5

http://www.cachuma-board.org/


Item #4b 
Page 1



Item #4b 
Page 2



Item #4b 
Page 3



Item #4b 
Page 4



Item #4b 
Page 5



MARCH

           Randall Ward

Item #4b 
Page 6



MARCH

           Randall Ward

Item #4b 
Page 7



MARCH

           Randall Ward

Item #4b 
Page 8



 10:37 AM
 04/14/15
 Accrual Basis

 comb2
 Payment of Claims

 As of March 31, 2015

 Page 1 of 2

Date Num Name Memo Amount
1050 · GENERAL FUND

03/05/2015 23504 A-1 Truck & Equipment Tow package Chev 3500/Crane F-350 repair/winch/cable -3,080.54
Crane F-350 & F-550 inspections

03/05/2015 23505 Acorn Landscape Management Co. Scheduled mtce-Lauro yard-Final -260.77
03/05/2015 23506 ACWA/Joint Powers Insurance Authority Property Program renewal 4/1/15-4/1/16 -4,025.00
03/05/2015 23507 All Around Landscape Supply Straw wattle/stakes-reservoirs (Ops Div) -1,175.90
03/05/2015 23508 AMI Pipe and Supply, Inc. Gas detector calibration mix (Ops Div) -310.00
03/05/2015 23509 AT&T Feb charges -492.12
03/05/2015 23510 Bartlett, Pringle & Wolf, LLP Single Audit services FY 13/14 (Fish Div) -4,587.00
03/05/2015 23511 Big Brand Tire Company Tire rotation/oil change-service '01 Chev (Fish Div) -40.72
03/05/2015 23512 Business Card Business lunches/Admin Analyst posting/banner for -728.23

press conference/Salmonic Conf reg/water bottles for
Operations crew

03/05/2015 23513 City of Santa-Barbara Trash/Recycle-Feb 2015 -216.17
03/05/2015 23514 Coastal Copy, LP Copier mtce agmt -64.94
03/05/2015 23515 County of SB-P.W. Water Agency Prop 84 MOU Cost share -890.00
03/05/2015 23516 Dale Francisco Feb mtg fees -398.31
03/05/2015 23517 ECHO Communications Monthly answering service -67.38
03/05/2015 23518 Farm Supply Company Tree stakes-Oak tree program (Fish Div) -2,015.56
03/05/2015 23519 GE Capital Copier lease agmt -133.92
03/05/2015 23520 Harrison Hardware Couple hose shut off/gopher baskets/fencing/driver posts/ -3,830.68

hoses/paint (Fish Div)
03/05/2015 23521 Home Depot Credit Services Vehicle mtce supp/insecticide/AVAR mat-supp (Ops Div) -92.70
03/05/2015 23522 Hydrex Pest Control Co. Pest service-Lauro yard -108.00
03/05/2015 23523 Ian's Tire & Auto Repair Tires/balancing-Chev 3500HD -1,245.40
03/05/2015 23524 Island Seed and Feed, Inc. Landscape mix/fertilizer-Oak tree program (Fish Div) -72.98
03/05/2015 23525 J&C Services Office cleaning-Feb services -600.00
03/05/2015 23526 Kenneth A. Knight, Consulting Consulting Arborist-Oak Tree program-Feb (Fish Div) -1,300.00
03/05/2015 23527 Kevin D. Walsh Feb mtg fees -321.22
03/05/2015 23528 Lauren W. Hanson Feb mtg fees -401.25
03/05/2015 23529 MarBorg Industries Portable toilets/monthly service -328.37
03/05/2015 23530 Musick, Peeler & Garrett LLP General Counsel-Jan -19,356.40
03/05/2015 23531 Paychex, Inc. 2/13, 2/27 payrolls/taxes/deliveries -325.37
03/05/2015 23532 Polly Holcombe Feb fees -288.54
03/05/2015 23533 Praxair Distribution, Inc Cylinder rental (acetylene for welder) -68.59
03/05/2015 23534 Prudential Overall Supply Mats/scrapers-Feb -100.56
03/05/2015 23535 Santa Barbara News Press Administrative Analyst ad -830.51
03/05/2015 23536 Santa Barbara Police Department Renewal-Security Alarm (annual) -40.00
03/05/2015 23537 SB Home Improvement Center Cable ties-fish trapping materials (Fish Div) -71.20
03/05/2015 23538 Staples Contract and Commercial, Inc. Office supplies -294.93
03/05/2015 23539 Staples Credit Plan Fish tissue/scale envelopes (Fish Div) -28.71
03/05/2015 23540 Tri-Co Reprographics Copies-QC Xng 3 (Fish Div) -59.44
03/05/2015 23541 Underground Service Alert of So. Calif. 41 Ticket charges -61.50
03/05/2015 23542 Verizon California SCADA -504.49
03/05/2015 23543 W. Douglas Morgan Feb mtg fees -279.00
03/05/2015 23544 Wright Express Fleet Services Fleet fuel -1,433.50
03/05/2015 23545 Valley Compost & Topsoil, Inc. Mulch/blended topsoil-Oak tree program (Fish Div) -279.72
03/05/2015 23546 Gosnell Tree & Landscape, Inc. Tree trimming work-Glen Anne Res (Ops Div) -285.00
03/09/2015 23547 Association of Ca Water Agencies/JPIA Apr Health Benefits coverage -24,635.09
03/09/2015 23548 Coastal Copy, LP Copier mtce agmt -11.55
03/09/2015 23549 Cox Communications Business internet-Mar -195.00
03/09/2015 23550 Southern California Edison Main office/outlying stations -1,323.33
03/13/2015 23551 CIO Solutions, LP Maintain IT-Mar -1,895.74
03/13/2015 23552 Coastal Copy, LP Copier mtce agmt -206.44

Item #4c 
Page 1



 10:37 AM
 04/14/15
 Accrual Basis

 comb2
 Payment of Claims

 As of March 31, 2015

 Page 2 of 2

Date Num Name Memo Amount
03/13/2015 23553 Culligan of Sylmar Monthly RO system -24.95
03/13/2015 23554 Cushman Contracting Corp. Emerg Pumping System: Pay Req#10-Phase II -349,570.68
03/13/2015 23555 Staples Contract and Commercial, Inc. Office supplies -447.41
03/13/2015 23556 Turenchalk Network Services, Inc. Server hardware/licenses/Back up software/storage -19,839.89
03/13/2015 23557 Verizon California SCADA -514.38
03/16/2015 23558 Curtiss-Wright Parts for NP Jet flow gate valve (Ops Div) -76,189.00
03/16/2015 23559 Southern California Edison Outlying stations -83.39
03/16/2015 23560 Spatial Wave Apr-Jun 2015 Field Mapplet Software mtce (Ops Div) -900.00
03/16/2015 23561 Staples Contract and Commercial, Inc. Office supplies -34.55
03/16/2015 23562 The Bank of Santa Barbara Loan interest pymt #8-Mar -3,969.73
03/16/2015 23563 Verizon Wireless Cellular/modems/USB's (Ops & Fish Div) -791.97
03/16/2015 23564 Capitol Elevator Company, Inc. North Portal Elevator Rehab - Retention release -11,831.00
03/18/2015 23565 Ben Meadows Company Weather proof tags w/wires (Fish Div) -133.71
03/18/2015 23566 Island Seed and Feed, Inc. Landscape mix/fertilizer-Oak tree program (Fish Div) -52.28
03/18/2015 23567 Peter Lapidus Construction, Inc. Mobilization-backhoe Lake Cachuma to Lauro (Fish Div) -330.00
03/18/2015 23568 United States Geological Survey 4th Qtr 2013 Agmt/1st Qtr 2014 Agmt -37,287.50
03/25/2015 23569 ACWA/Joint Powers Insurance Authority Employee Fidelity Program renewal 4/1/15-4/1/16 -1,186.00
03/25/2015 23570 Business Card Business lunches/Posi trak belts-bearings/main office -1,385.45

safety lights/webhosting/Hotel-SRF Conf (TR)
03/25/2015 23571 GE Capital Copier lease agmt -355.32
03/25/2015 23572 Santa Barbara Concrete Cutting Below grade vault wall core hole (Foothill & Toro Canyon) -390.00
03/25/2015 23573 The Gas Company Gas-main office -48.56
03/25/2015 22886 Cushman Contracting Corp. Emerg Pumping System: Pay Req#10-Phase II/Retention -217,737.33
03/26/2015 23574 Coastal Copy, LP Copier mtce agmt -86.57
03/26/2015 23575 Valley Compost & Topsoil, Inc. Mulch-Oak tree program (Fish Div) -41.58
03/30/2015 23576 MCT Trailers Water trailer-brakes/electrical/plugs/bearings (Fish Div) -789.11
03/30/2015 23577 PG&E North Portal/Tecolote tunnel electrical service -302.01

Total 1050 · GENERAL FUND -803,684.14

TOTAL -803,684.14

Item #4c 
Page 2



Date Num Name Memo Amount

Mar 15
03/13/2015 3019 Cachuma Oper & Maint Board Jan-Feb Oak Tree prog/Fisheries-QC Xng exp's -38,525.53

Mar 15 -38,525.53

10:37 AM comb2
04/14/15 Payment of Claims-Renewal Fund
Accrual Basis March 2015

Page 1
Item #4c 

Page 3







CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD 
 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE:  April 27, 2015 
 
TO:    Randy Ward, General Manager 
 
FROM:   Tim Robinson, Fisheries Division Manager 
 
RE:    MONTHLY FISHERIES DIVISION REPORT  
 
 
HIGHLIGHTS: 

• Further design work continues for the pending Quiota Creek Crossing 0a+0b and Crossing 
3 projects. 

• The CalTrans grant proposal process is well underway for Quiota Creek Crossing 8 which 
will be a collaborative effort with the County of Santa Barbara.  

• Hilton Creek Emergency Backup System needs to be tested once all the electrical work has 
been completed; completion and test dates are uncertain. 

 
In compliance with the 2000 Cachuma Project Biological Opinion (NMFS, 2000) and as described 
in the 2004 Lower Santa Ynez River Fish Management Plan (SYRTAC, 2000) and the Monitoring 
Program in the 2000 Revised Biological Assessment (BA), the Cachuma Project Biology Staff 
(CPBS) conducts routine monitoring of steelhead/rainbow trout and their habitat on the Lower 
Santa Ynez River (LSYR) below Bradbury Dam. The following is a list of activities carried out by 
CPBS since the last COMB Board meeting that has been broken out by categories.   
 
LSYR Steelhead Monitoring Elements: 

 
Lake Profiles:  Lake Cachuma water quality measurements (temperature, dissolved oxygen 
concentration and total dissolved solids) at one meter intervals from the surface to the bottom 
of the lake (Lake Profile) are taken once a month normally from April through December at 
the Hilton Creek Watering System (HCWS) intake barge. This is considered to be at or near 
the deepest point in the lake and allows for monitoring of lake stratification, water quality 
conditions at the intake level for the HCWS and lake-turnover. Due to the drought and need 
to carefully monitor Lake Cachuma, lake profiles will be taken monthly throughout the year for 
the unforeseeable future. 
 
Migrant Trapping:  This monitoring effort normally begins in January and continues through 
May depending on stream flow rates. The 2015 Trapping Plan was approved by Reclamation 
and submitted to NMFS with no comments received. Due to an excessively dry year and 
limitations in the number of juvenile and adult take as stipulated in the Cachuma Project BO, 
a reduced trapping program began on 3/10/15 and will continue until the take limits are 
reached or the end of the migration season. Results of the trapping program are presented in 
the Annual Monitoring Report. 

 
Redd Surveys:  Redd surveys are conducted every two weeks from mid-January through 
May. Surveys were initiated in January within the LSYR mainstem in the Highway 154, 
Refugio, and Alisal reaches where access was permitted, and certain sections of Hilton, 

Item #4e 
Page 1



Quiota, and Salsipuedes/El Jaro creeks. The number of redds is reported in the Annual 
Monitoring Plan. 
 
Cachuma Lake Oak Tree Restoration Program:  COMB staff, with guidance from the hired 
professional arborist, continues to implement the Program and has successfully conducted all 
management actions as required. An update of the project is provided in a separate Board 
memo including the new trees (Year 7) that are currently being planted.  

 
Tributary Project Updates: 

Quiota Creek Crossing 0:  COMB received a 2014 CDFW-FRGP Grant for $671,635 with a 
landowner construction match of $50,000. The COMB Board accepted the grant on 3/23/15. 
Staff has met with the landowners and with help of our design engineer is revising the plans 
accordingly. Once all are in agreement on the design, they will then be submitted to 
NMFS/CDFW for their review. The permit process has begun. The objective is to build the 
project in the fall of 2015. The project was discussed at the 3/5/15 Fisheries Committee 
meeting. 
 
Quiota Creek Crossing 3:  COMB received a 2014 CDFW-FRGP Grant for $705,205 with a 
COMB construction match of $50,000. The COMB Board accepted the grant on 3/23/15. The 
designs have been submitted to the County for their review with designs going to 
NMFS/CDFW shortly. Permits applications are under way. The objective is to build the project 
in the fall of 2015. The project was discussed at the 3/5/15 Fisheries Committee meeting. 
 
Quiota Creek Crossing 4:  COMB submitted a 2015 CDFW-FRGP Grant on 3/30/15 for 
$938,295 with a COMB construction match of $50,000. The results of that funding competition 
will be announced in the winter of 2016. The project was discussed at the 3/5/15 Fisheries 
Committee.  
 
Quiota Creek Crossing 8:  In collaboration with SB County and a hired consultant, we have 
started the CalTrans grant proposal process which is lengthy with many steps. Grants are 
reviewed upon submittal hence the process will be slow at first and then the results should be 
back in a shorter period of time compared to other grant programs. The project was discussed 
during the 3/5/15 Fisheries Committee meeting.  
 
Salsipuedes Creek – Jalama Road Fish Ladder:  There has been no action on the 
suggested repairs to this project. 
 
El Jaro Creek – Cross Creek Ranch Fish Passage Facility:  There has been no action on 
the suggested repairs to this project.  

 
Hilton Creek Watering System (HCWS) Repairs and Upgrades 
The HCWS is owned, operated and maintained by USBR. The following repairs and upgrades 
have been identified by USBR with the status of each (Table 1). The electrical work is nearing 
completion and system testing is pending with no date set. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item #4e 
Page 2



Table 1:  List of HCWS repairs and upgrades as reviewed by USBR Management on 4/21/15. 
# Tasks Status:
1 Run a watering truck to LRP for 10 hrs/day until Pumps #1+2 are operational Completed - 5/30/14 thru 6/10/14
2 Replace failed Pump #1  on HCWS Pumping Barge Completed - 6/9/14
3 Conduct repairs on Pump #2  on HCWS Pumping Barge Completed - 6/10/14

Install temporary HC Emergency Backup System (HCEBS) at Bradbury Dam Outlet Works: 
4     Receive contractor bids Completed (2 rounds)
5     Issue a contract and a Notice to Proceed letter Completed - contract issued on 9/3/14
6     Install steel riser pipe off of the 10" release valve at Outlet Works (USBR) Completed - 6/20/14
7     Construct the HCEBS Pending (started 12/1/14 + estimated completion 6/30/15)

         Electrical controlers and testing still needed
Work to be completed once the HCEBS is installed:

8     Provide low flow delivery (~1.5 cfs) to HC to accommodate < 30,000 af of storage Pending (completion of the HCEBS)
9     Finalize all needed modifications to Pumps #1+2 Pending (completion of the HCEBS)
10     Upgrade current Motor Control (electrical panel) to assure no power interruption  to Pumping Barge Pending (completion of the HCEBS)
11     General top of Dam electrical and SCADA upgrades Pending (completion of the HCEBS)
12 Repair the 3 leaky valves at the Outlet works Valve sealing done in December, improved not perfect,

      work in progress
13 Negotiate a solution for independent CCWA delivery without connecting to the Outlet CCWA, USBR, MUs +SYRWCD to address
14 Install permanent Hilton Creek Backup Delivery System (HCBDS) from the Outlet Works In preliminary design phase (2016 +/-)  
 
Surcharge Water Accounting 
The following table summarizes the amount of Surcharge water used to date from each of the 
three accounts at the end of last month (Table 2). All numbers come from USBR’s Daily Operations 
Report. The start time for the use of the Surcharge Water Accounts was 5/27/11, or the last day of 
full surcharge. As of May 2012, all of the Fish Rearing Account waters have been used and we are 
now using Project Yield to meet BO target flows. A WR 89-18 release began on 7/15/13 at 8:15 
AM and ended on 12/2/13 at 2:00 PM and another WR 89-18 release began on 8/18/14 and ended 
on 11/11/14 at 8:00 AM. During these releases, no Fish Rearing releases are debited as WR 89-18 
releases are used conjunctively with fish flows under the Cachuma Project Settlement Agreement. 
The Adaptive Management Committee (AMC) called for two release from the Adaptive 
Management Account (AMA), 35 acre-feet in October 2012 and 114 acre-feet in June 2013. What 
remains of the AMA is 351 acre-feet. There have been no releases from the Fish Passage 
Supplementation Account. Determination of critical drought and the associated accounting has not 
been finalized and is not reflected in Table 2. 
 
Table 2:  Summary of the surcharge water accounting and use of Project Yield.  

Accounts* Allocation Amount Used** Amount Remaining
Units: (acre-feet) (acre-feet) (acre-feet)

Fish Passage Supplementation 3,200 0 3,200
Adaptive Management 500 149 351

Fish Rearing*** 5,484 5,484 0
Project Yield 12,160

Total: 9,184 17,793 3,551
* Originally was 9,200 af, 8,942 af in 2008 and 9,184 af in 2013.
** Values as of 3/31/15.
*** This water is for meeting required target flows. This is not an official account
     and is what remains after subtracting the other two accounts.  

 
Reporting / Outreach / Training 
Reporting:  Staff is working on the 2012 and 2013 Annual Monitoring Reports that will be sent to 
the Science Review Team as soon as possible.  
 
Outreach and Training:  Staff continues to work with Quiota Creek and Salsipuedes Creek 
watershed landowners, interested parties within the Santa Ynez Valley and the County on a variety 
of fisheries related issues.  

Item #4e 
Page 3



 
Consultant Activity Summary 
HDR Fisheries Design Center (Mike Garello) – Design work for the Quiota Creek Crossings 0, 3, 
4 and 8 projects.  

 
Stetson Engineers (Ali Shahroody) – Santa Ynez River hydrological analyses.  

 
Cardno (Jean Baldrige) – BO compliance tasks and support. 
 
COM3 Consulting (Gerald Comati) – Quiota Creek Crossing 8 CalTrans grant application. 
 
 

Item #4e 
Page 4

































CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD 
 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

Date: April 27, 2015 

Submitted by: Randall Ward 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Operations Division Projects FY 2014-15  
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
The following provides a summary of proposed current year work plan expenditures requiring Board 
action.  

1. Newly identified work plan needs utilizing savings from completed projects.  Request 
expenditure authority for projects that exceed $10,000. 

2. Request expenditure authority for projects included in the current year budget that exceed 
$10,000. 

 
Identified Work Plan Needs 
 

i. North Portal Jet Flow Spool Design and Purchase:  The Jet Flow Control Valve replacement 
parts were an approved project in the 2014-15 budget in the amount of $150,000.  The actual 
cost of part acquisition was less than the budgeted amount resulting in savings of 
approximately $73,000.  Staff proposes to use the savings, in part, to design and fabricate a 
pipe spool that could be fitted into the identical section of pipe as the Jet Flow Valve.  The 
fabricated pipe section would replace the Jet Flow valve during a rebuild or in response to an 
emergency involving a failure of the valve.  The addition of the fabricated pipe would reduce 
the required shutdown time of the SCC by enabling an immediate substitution of the new pipe 
for the Jet Flow valve during rehabilitation or an emergency.  The estimated cost is $30,000. 

 
ii. Elevator Electric Control Panel Replacement:  The original elevator rehabilitation project was 

completed; however staff became aware of a faulty drive unit and controller drive interface 
board.  A repair proposal of $25,680 has been obtained from Capital Elevator.  Repair is 
crucial to continued safe operation of the elevator. Approximately $39,000 from FY 13/14 
unexpended funds remains from this project to adequately proceed with the correction. We 
solicited proposals and received only one proposal that was responsive.  In addition, heat 
sensors will be installed to replace faulty smoke detectors. 

____________________________________________________ 
 
Expenditure Authority Request 
 

iii. V-Ditch Project:  Located in the Upper Reach section of the Cachuma Project, the V-ditch 
was constructed during initial SCC development to permanently remove overburden to 
protect the SCC.  An amount of $30,000 was included in the current year budget to remove 
over burden that occurred over time because of erosion. Expenditure authority is requested 
to expend an amount, not to exceed $30,000, to complete the project.  Staff has secured four 
contractor quotes and recommends the lowest priced contractor, Peter Lapidus Construction. 
Provide General Manager the authority to initiate a contract for this project. 

  

Item #4h 
Page 1



iv. Open Air Vent Rehabilitation Project:  Rehabilitation of this air vent was approved in the 
2014-15 budget. The purpose of the air vent is to evacuate air to prevent a pipe collapse. The 
project originally proposed anticipated design and repair with corrosion resistant materials at 
a cost of approximately $70,000. Subsequent to budget approval, staff has determined a cost 
effective rehabilitation can be accomplished for approximately $35,000.  COMB has provided 
plans for rehabilitation to the Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) for concurrence.  Once BOR 
approval is received, staff will obtain proposals from outside contractors to complete the 
work. Provide General Manager the authority to contract for structure rehabilitation.  

 
v. Vehicle Purchases:   The 2014-15 Budget included the authorization to replace two trucks.  

The purchase cost is to be partially offset by the sale of aged fleet vehicles.  COMB has sold 
four vehicles totaling $34,728.  Provide General Manager the authority to purchase two 
trucks. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
No additional funding requested - Adjustment to current year expenditure authorization.  The above items 
are included in the Fiscal Year 2014-15 budget.   This is an adjustment in the use of those funds. 
 
LEGAL CONCURRENCE: 
 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 
 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

i. Board authorize General Manager to expend existing approved funds based on proposals 
received. 

ii. Board authorize General Manager to expend existing approved funds based on proposals 
received. 

iii. Board authorize General Manager to use existing funds and enter into a contract to complete 
the projects as described. 

iv. Board authorize General Manager to use existing funds and enter into a contract to complete 
the projects as described. 

v. Board authorize General Manager to use existing funds to purchase two vehicles. 
 

 
LIST OF EXHIBITS: 
 
None. 
 
 
 

Item #4h 
Page 2



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD 
 

FISHERIES COMMITTEE MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: April 27, 2015 

Submitted by: Tim Robinson 

Approved by: Randy Ward 

 
 
SUBJECT: Contract Award – Risk Analysis and Optimization of the Lower Santa Ynez River 

Migrant Trapping Program Study 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Consistent with the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 COMB budget and supporting Scopes of Work (SOW), a 
contract with a qualified consultant is required to perform a thorough statistical analysis to minimize the 
risk of take exceedances while optimizing the Migrant Trapping Program for long-term trend analysis of 
migrating steelhead/rainbow trout (Oncorhynchus mykiss, O. mykiss) in the Lower Santa Ynez River 
(LSYR). This work has been requested and will be done in collaboration with U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
(USBR). 
 
On behalf of USBR, COMB Fisheries Division conducts all required monitoring of O. mykiss in the LSYR 
and its tributaries as described in the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) 2000 Cachuma Project 
Biological Opinion (BO) and 2000 LSYR Fish Management Plan. A central task to that monitoring effort is 
the Migrant Trapping Program that began in the mid-1990s and is ongoing. At the request of NMFS, 
USBR must adhere to the take limits as stated in the BO. A study is needed to assess the risk of 
exceeding take while maximizing the trapping effort under the requested take limits. This effort will ensure 
the optimal interpretation of data collected during the monitoring period and allow continuation of the long-
term trend analyses. 
 
After COMB staff reviewed and evaluated the proposals received, staff recommends that the COMB 
Board award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder with the best qualifications, Cramer Fish 
Sciences 
 
DETAILS: 
 
Due to a request by the NMFS to USBR, the take limits must not exceed 110 juvenile and 150 adults O. 
mykiss as stated in the Incidental Take Statement (ITS) of 2000 BO (NMFS, 2000). The LSYR Migrant 
Trapping Program has been at or over the take limit since the issuance of the BO which has been 
regularly reported to NMFS through multiple Annual Monitoring Reports. It wasn’t until 2013 when USBR 
entered into formal Reconsultation for a new BO did NMFS make the request of USBR to stay under take. 
In 2014, a reduced trapping effort was conducted where juvenile and adult take was not exceeded. This 
modified trapping plan compromised long-term trend analyses from a dataset that started in 2000 and 
limits our ability to demonstrate to NMFS the success and positive contribution from multiple restoration 
projects to the recovery of the endangered southern steelhead. 
 
A study is needed to (1) perform a risk analysis for the potential to exceed take both for juvenile and adult 
O. mykiss associated with the Migrant Trapping Program in a highly variable system such as the LSYR 
and its tributaries, and (2) provide recommendations on how best to optimize the trapping effort to not 
exceed take while maximizing the monitoring effort in support of the long-term trend analyses. A SOW 
was written for this needed study, was reviewed by the Fisheries Committee (2/24/14, 3/5/15 and 

Item #4i 
Page 1



4/14/15) and was approved and incorporated in the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 COMB Budget. A Request for 
Proposals (RFP) was sent to 5 qualified consulting firms with Biometricians capable of performing the 
required analyses and producing the desired deliverables. Two proposals were received that met the 
requirements. If this work is not conducted, risk of exceedance prevails and necessary optimization of this 
critical monitoring task to demonstrate all the progress made through multiple restoration projects towards 
recovery of the endangered southern steelhead is compromised.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The COMB FY 2014-2015 budget allocated $35,000 for this effort. 
  
LEGAL CONCURRENCE:  
 
N/A  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 
 
N/A  
 
COMMITTEE STATUS: 
 
The Fisheries Committee reviewed the SOW on 2/24/14 and recommended it for incorporation in the 
COMB FY 2014-2015 Budget and discussed staff’s progress with this study on 3/5/15 and 4/14/15. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Action Item:   Authorize the COMB General Manager to enter into a contract with Cramer Fish Sciences 
for the purpose stated in an amount not to exceed $35,000.  
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS: 
 
N/A  
 

Item #4i 
Page 2



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD 
 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

Date: April 27, 2015 

Approved by: Randall Ward 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:        IRWMP Proposition 84 Grant Funding Allocation 
 
 
 
Background 
 
COMB will receive grants providing, in part, financial assistance for the Emergency Pumping Facility 
Project (EPFP). The grants are segregated for the purpose of discussion as follows: 
 

• Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Grant (IRWMP) – COMB has received notification 
the application for $2.0 million of funds available from state allocated Proposition 84 funds will be 
provided at fifty-two percent of the requested amount or approximately $1.037 million.  These 
funds will be distributed directly to COMB. 

 
• State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) – Each Member Unit has been notified they are 

to individually receive $350k to offset their EPFP financial obligation. These funds will be provided 
as a reimbursement to each Member Unit. 

 
• Department of Water Resources (DWR) – Each Member Unit has been notified they are to 

individually receive $150K to offset their EPFP financial obligation.  These funds will be provided 
as a reimbursement to each Member Unit. 
 

The grants from the SWRCB and DWR total $500k to each individual Member Unit without regard to the 
COMB (SCMU) project cost allocations as set forth in the Master Renewal Contract. 
 
Issue Detail 
 
The above grants do not consider Member Unit project cost allocations in a manner consistent with the 
Master Renewal Contract.  Therefore, the City of Santa Barbara (SB) and the Goleta Water District 
(GWD) are subject to a disproportionate EPFP financial obligation.  SB and GWD request the allocation 
of the IRWMP Prop 84 grant be split between those two agencies in a weighted percentage proportion 
(SCMU) as set forth in the Master Renewal Contract. This action would recognize Montecito Water 
District and Carpinteria Valley Water District, with the individual receipt of $500k, will have offset their 
individual contributions to the EPFP by over (50%).  The adoption of this proposal does not equalize the 
percentage share of project costs between the four Member Units but seeks to achieve partial project 
funding equity. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
N/A 
 
 

Item #5 
Page 1



LEGAL CONCURRENCE:  
 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE STATUS: 
 
Recommend allocating the Prop 84 IRWMP Grant Funding to project costs obligations between Goleta 
Water District and the City of Santa Barbara in a weighted percentage allocation as set forth in the Master 
Renewal Contract. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Board adopt recommendation approved by the Administrative Committee. 
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS: 
 

1) Funding matrix 
 
 

Item #5 
Page 2



Emergency Pumping Facilities Project
IRWMP Prop 84 Proposed Allocation

GWD City of SB CVWD MWD
40.42% 35.88% 12.20% 11.50%

TOTAL COSTS $7,678,603 $3,103,691 $2,755,083 $936,790 $883,039

DWR and SWRCB Funding        (2,000,000)               (500,000)           (500,000)           (500,000)           (500,000)

MU Contribution after State Funding $5,678,603 $2,603,691 $2,255,083 $436,790 $383,039

USBR Funding           (300,000)               (121,260)           (107,640)             (36,600)             (34,500)
SB County In-Kind           (109,533)                 (44,273)             (39,300)             (13,363)             (12,596)

MU Total Contribution $5,269,070 $2,438,158 $2,108,142 $386,827 $335,943
IRWMP Grant Funding  $    (1,037,842)               (549,798)           (488,044)
MU Total Contribution $1,888,360 $1,620,098 $386,827 $335,943

52.98% 47.02%

Project Costs

Item #5 
Page 3



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD 
 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

Date: April 27, 2015 

Submitted by: Randall Ward 

 
 
 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2015-16 Proposed Draft Operating Budget 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Prepared for your review is the COMB Draft FY 2015-16 Operating budget. The draft budget contains 
program expenditure detail for the Operations, Fisheries and Administration Divisions. The budget 
allocation worksheet included within the budget summary provides fund source information. 
 
This draft budget includes the current employee salary and benefit package as increased by a 1.3 percent 
COLA per the adopted annual calculation formula.  The COLA is determined by averaging the prior 
thirteen months CPI for all urban consumers and comparing that average to the previous year averaged 
data.  The U.S. City and the Los Angeles-Riverside data is then averaged together to obtain the 
percentage COLA for the period.  COMB staff has reviewed the budget in detail with Member Agency’s 
representatives. 
 
Operations Division 
 
Operations and Maintenance Expenses 
 
The Operations Division labor cost would decrease primarily due to the reduction in employer contribution 
to CalPERS and health insurance premiums attributable to new hires.   
 
The Vehicles and Equipment section is reduced by approximately twenty six percent under the current 
year because of the current year vehicle purchase.  Contract labor is proposed to increase because of 
additional cost effective utilization of the California Conservation Corps and engineering services 
proposed in the implementation of the annual work plan. 
 
The Materials and Supplies section has increased in anticipation of purchasing inventory for field crew 
projects outlined in the annual work plan.  This increase is largely attributable to AVAR and Blow Off 
valve materials. Other expenses have been reduced from the prior fiscal year. 
 
General and Administrative Expenses 
 
General and Administrative expenses of the Operations Division has decreased approximately five 
percent primarily attributable to health insurance benefit savings and CalPERS employer contribution 
savings.  Postage, office supplies and office equipment line items have been decreased to reflect actual 
expenditures.  The Membership dues line item displays a slight increase due to the ACWA/JPIA 
membership cost increase.  The computer consultant line item has been decreased due to the recent 
change in IT consultants.  Under Special G & A expenses, it is anticipated administrative costs for 
Proposition 84 grants will be the same as the prior fiscal year. 
 

Item #6 
Page 1



Infrastructure Improvement Projects 
 
The proposed Infrastructure Improvement Program Project section is increased over the previous year 
because of capital projects scheduled for completion during FY 2015-16. 
 
Special Projects 
 
The Emergency Pumping Facilities Project line item contains the minimum budgeted amount for 
operational and maintenance expenditures; however this project is subject to change with a possible 
special assessment depending on decisions regarding the pipeline purchase and affiliated storage costs.  
 
Fisheries Division 
 
Operation and Maintenance Expenses 
 
The Fisheries Division Labor Account has increased compared to the prior year primarily due to salary 
increases attributable to range steps and the COLA.  The Fixed Capital line item has decreased due to 
the current year purchase of a vehicle.  The contract labor section is proposed to increase because of the 
shared utilization of the California Conservation Corp.  
 
General and Administrative Expenses 
 
Overall, the General and Administrative portion of the Fisheries Division has decreased about six percent 
primarily attributable to health insurance benefit savings and CalPERS employer contribution savings.  
Postage, office supplies and office equipment line items have been decreased to reflect actual cost.  The 
Membership dues line item displays a slight increase due to the ACWA/JPIA membership cost increases.  
The computer consultant line item has been decreased because of the recent change in IT consultants. 
 
Program Support Services 
 
The Program Support Services section within the Fisheries Division incorporates all monitoring, mapping 
and reporting tasks required in the implementation of the Cachuma Project Biological Opinion (BO) and 
Lower Santa Ynez River (LSYR) Fisheries Management Plan (FMP). All of the line items remain 
unchanged compared to the current year. 
 
Habitat Improvement Projects 
 
The Tributary Project Improvements line item has increased over the current year attributable to the 
Salsipuedes Fish Ladder Improvement Project slated for FY 2015-16 as outlined in the Habitat 
Improvement Plan (HIP).  Quiota Creek Crossing 0 (a&b) and Crossing 3 have been awarded grant 
funding and will be constructed during FY 2015-16 as set forth in the HIP.  
 
 
In summary, the COMB proposed FY 2015-16 Draft Budget totals $9,407,712.  Overall, as indicated on 
page 4 of the budget, COMB will manage over $11 million in revenues during this fiscal year.  These 
revenues include the Warren Act Trust Fund, the Santa Barbara County $100,000 annual contribution, 
$1,376,840 in grants affiliated with the Fisheries Division Projects, Cachuma Project Water Entitlement, 
Bradbury and Lauro Dam SOD Act repayments, and the Water Rights fee.  With projected offsetting 
revenues of $2,066,840, the net FY 2015-16 COMB Draft Budget totals $7,340,872. 
 
Note:  The budget does not contain funding for potential litigation settlement costs. 

Item #6 
Page 2



LEGAL CONCURRENCE: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE STATUS: 
 
Administrative Committee reviewed and recommended submittal to Board of Directors for adoption at the 
April 27th, 2015 Board meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Board of Directors approve and adopt the COMB FY 2015-16 Draft Operating Budget as presented. 
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS: 
 

1) FY 2015-16 Draft COMB Operating Budget 
2) FY 2015-16 Draft COMB Allocation Worksheet 
3) FY 2015-16 Draft COMB Budget Summary 
4) FY 2016-20 Draft Infrastructure Improvement Plan 
5) FY 2016-20 Draft Habitat Improvement Plan 

Item #6 
Page 3



Item #6-1 
Page 1



Item #6-1 
Page 2



Item #6-1 
Page 3



Item #6-1 
Page 4



Item #6-1 
Page 5



Item #6-1 
Page 6



Item #6-1 
Page 7



Item #6-1 
Page 8



Item #6-1 
Page 9



Item #6-1 
Page 10



Item #6-1 
Page 11



Item #6-1 
Page 12



Item #6-1 
Page 13



Item #6-1 
Page 14



Item #6-1 
Page 15



Item #6-1 
Page 16



Item #6-1 
Page 17



Item #6-1 
Page 18



Item #6-1 
Page 19



Item #6-1 
Page 21



Item #6-1 
Page 22



Item #6-1 
Page 23



Item #6-1 
Page 24



Item #6-1 
Page 25



Item #6-1 
Page 26



Item #6-1 
Page 27



Item #6-1 
Page 28



Item #6-1 
Page 29



Item #6-1 
Page 30



Item #6-1 
Page 31



Item #6-1 
Page 32



Item #6-1 
Page 33



Item #6-1 
Page 34



Item #6-1 
Page 35



Item #6-1 
Page 36



Item #6-1 
Page 37



Item #6-1 
Page 38



Item #6-1 
Page 39



Item #6-1 
Page 40



Item #6-1 
Page 41



Item #6-1 
Page 42



Item #6-2 
Page 1



Item #6-2 
Page 2



Item #6-2 
Page 3



Item #6-2 
Page 4



Item #6-2 
Page 5



Item #6-2 
Page 6



Item #6-2 
Page 7



Item #6-2 
Page 8



Item #6-2 
Page 9



Item #6-2 
Page 10



Item #6-2 
Page 11



Item #6-2 
Page 12



Item #6-2 
Page 13



Item #6-2 
Page 14



Item #6-2 
Page 15



Item #6-2 
Page 16



Item #6-2 
Page 17



Item #6-2 
Page 18



Item #6-2 
Page 19



Item #6-2 
Page 20



Item #6-2 
Page 21



Item #6-2 
Page 22



Item #6-2 
Page 23



Item #6-2 
Page 24



Item #6-2 
Page 25



Item #6-2 
Page 26



Item #6-2 
Page 27



Item #6-2 
Page 28



Item #6-2 
Page 29



Item #6-2 
Page 30



Item #6-2 
Page 31



Item #6-2 
Page 32



Item #6-2 
Page 33



Item #6-2 
Page 34



Item #6-2 
Page 35



Item #6-2 
Page 36



Item #6-2 
Page 37



Item #6-2 
Page 38



Item #6-2 
Page 39



Item #6-2 
Page 40



Item #6-2 
Page 41



Item #6-2 
Page 42



Item #6-2 
Page 43



Item #6-2 
Page 44



Item #6-3 
Page 1



Item #6-3 
Page 2



Item #6-3 
Page 3



Item #6-3 
Page 4



Item #6-3 
Page 5



Item #6-3 
Page 6



Item #6-3 
Page 7



Item #6-3 
Page 8



Item #6-3 
Page 9



Item #6-3 
Page 10



Item #6-3 
Page 11



Item #6-3 
Page 12



Item #6-3 
Page 13



Item #6-3 
Page 14



Item #6-3 
Page 15



Item #6-3 
Page 16



Item #6-3 
Page 17



Item #6-3 
Page 18



Item #6-3 
Page 19



Item #6-3 
Page 20



Item #6-3 
Page 21



 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  April 27, 2015 
  

General Manager Report 
 

 
 

• USBR Site Inspection  
COMB is routinely requested by USBR to provide a status update to 
USBR Category 1 recommendations.  Cross connection protection is one 
of these recommendations.  Cross connection surveys and reports have 
been provided to USBR by the impacted Member Units.  It is COMB’s 
understanding, from information received, cross connection compliance 
has been achieved.    

 
• NP Elevator Rehabilitation 
 The North Portal Elevator rehabilitation is complete and Cal/OSHA has 

issued an operating permit. Following the final inspection, an internal 
component within the electronic control panel failed. The description of 
contracted replacement of this equipment is provided under Item 4. h. in 
the agenda package.  Once the equipment is replaced USBR will 
schedule an inspection to determine if the item can be removed from the 
Category 1 recommendations. 

  
• Santa Barbara County Drought Task Force (DTF) 

COMB continues to provide project updates to the DTF.  On April 15, 
2015, the DTF met to discuss numerous drought related topics.  Included 
in the discussion was information regarding the status of the categories of 
water in the lake. The County has been providing information and 
discussing the matter with Member Unit Managers.  
 

• Encroachment 
Staff continues the effort to reconcile easement records with accurate 
property owner information. Accurate property owner information serves 
as the foundation for encroachment permits and the ability to assume the 
responsibility for activities within the easement of the SCC. On a parallel 
track, staff is beginning the development of a structure to place the 
easement information in a GIS system and record existing 
encroachments. 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“To provide a reliable source of water 
to our member agencies in an efficient and cost effective 

manner for the betterment of life in our communities.” 

1 | 
 

Item #7 
Page 1



The draft Infrastructure Improvement Program (IIP) contains information 
on existing encroachments that potentially pose an operational risk to the 
SCC. 
  

• Drought Emergency Pumping Facility Project 
 

1.      Construction Status   
o The pumping system is operational and in standby mode until 

operation becomes necessary. The most recent estimate of 
factors impacting lake elevation indicate the system may not 
be required until late April or early May. The system is tested 
monthly by the contractor. 

 
o The PG&E transformer and electrical switch gear remains 

protected by fencing and security personnel is on site. 
 

o Discussions continue regarding relocation of the pumping 
barge and related issues.  

 
o Pipe retention alternative storage options are under review for 

consideration following disassembly of the EPFP.  Information 
on potential options will be forwarded to MU Managers for 
review within the next two weeks. 

  
2.      Grant Funding 

 Grant funding agreement documents have been completed and 
formalized between the participating Member Units, the Department 
of Water Resources (DWR) and the State Water Resources Control 
Board (SWRCB). 

 
o SWRCB invoice information has been provided to the MU’s. 
o County formal acceptance of the Proposition 84 grant is 

anticipated by the end of April. 
o DWR invoice information is being cooperatively developed. 

  
• Infrastructure Improvement Program 

The draft Infrastructure improvement Program was reviewed by the 
Operations Committee and forwarded to the MU Managers for review and 
comment on March 13, 2015. 
 

• Draft COMB FY 2015-16 Budget 
The draft budget was reviewed by the Administration Committee on April 
6, 2015 and forwarded to the MU Managers for review on April 9, 2015.  
COMB conducted a budget briefing and answered questions from MU 
Managers on April 20, 2015. COMB also invited MU managers to ask 

2 | 
 

Item #7 
Page 2



questions via email and indicated questions and responses would be 
provided to all managers. 

 
 

• COMB Office Buildings 
Investigation into replacement options for modular buildings is continuing.  
Following staff review, an analysis and recommendation will be brought to 
the Administrative Committee.  
 

• Division Manager Comments 
  

See Attachment (A) for Emergency Pumping Facility Project expenditure detail. 
 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Randall Ward 
 
 
General Manager 

3 | 
 

Item #7 
Page 3



AS OF: 3/31/2015
FY 14/15 APPROVED BUDGET
Drought Contingency Planning ACCT #6108 -                      
Emergency Pumping Facility Project ACCT #6120 4,708,000.00     
Total Budget Approved 4,708,000.00$  
FY 13/14 Unexpended funds (unapproved projected) 7,649.44            *Acct #6108

4,715,649.44$  Total funds available FY 14/15

FY 13/14
CONSULTANTS BUDGET EXPENDED BALANCE

Environ Strategy 60,000.00           9,191.50             50,808.50          Project Management Services
HDR Engineering 198,748.00        178,645.48         20,102.52          Develop proj def; assist w/RFQ-RFP, etc
MPG - Environmental/Legal 50,000.00           80,622.32           (30,622.32)         Environmental / Legal fees
Permits 8,045.25             8,045.25             -                      CDFW-$4,912.25 / RWQCB-$3,133
PG&E 7,000.00             7,000.00             -                      On-going project electrical charges
Smith, Watts & Martinez 20,000.00           20,000.00           -                      Lobbyist-drought relief funding
SYRWCD ID#1 (Stetson) 5,000.00             4,025.17             974.83                Work authorized by RW/TR
Miscellaneous 33,206.75           119.72                33,087.03          Non-Contract Incidental charges
Cushman Contracting 350,000.00        350,000.00         -                      Phase I designs/mobilization/site prep
HDR Engineering 50,000.00           -                       50,000.00          Project Management fees
Contractor 54,000.00           -                       54,000.00          Evaluation of NP gates, stems, guides
VAG 150,000.00        152,272.44         (2,272.44)           Stems for gates 1-5
PG&E -                      107,370.37         (107,370.37)       Electrical Installation contract
Cushman Contracting** 528,840.00         (528,840.00)       JE of Phase II Jun work from FY 14/15

FY 2013/2014 Totals 986,000.00$      1,446,132.25$   (460,132.25)$    

FY 14/15
CONSULTANTS BUDGET EXPENDED BALANCE

Cushman Contracting 3,568,000.00     3,486,862.13     81,137.87          Construction - Phase II/Operations
HDR Engineering 150,000.00        57,663.05           92,336.95          Contract Management tasks
PGE Construction 750,000.00        21,390.00           728,610.00        
PGE Monthly Costs 240,000.00        111,907.00         128,093.00        
PGE Electricty charges 9,631.02             
RMC Water & Environment -                      24,533.50           (24,533.50)         Prop 84, Grant Application support
Rodney Hunt-Fontaine -                      540.00                (540.00)              Stems/guides-cast/engineering
SY Band of Chumash -                      1,914.30             (1,914.30)           Field monitoring
Bank of Santa Barbara -                      47,077.51           (47,077.51)         Loan fees/Interest (CVWD/GWD/MWD)
Misc 1,214.97             1,214.97             -                      Materials, supplies, Permits, etc.

4,709,214.97$   3,762,733.48$   956,112.51$      

** This entry/amount is representative of the JE as
required by the Auditors to expense Phase II Inv#2B,
worked performed in June 13/14, to proper Fiscal Year. 
This Phase II work was included in FY 14/15 budget.

BUDGET EXPENDED BALANCE
5,695,214.97$   5,208,865.73$   495,980.26$      

QB Reconciliation 1,446,132.25             QB Total Expenditures FY 13/14

3,762,733.48             QB Total Expenditures FY 14/15

5,208,865.73$           

Description

EMERGENCY PUMPING FACILITY PROJECT FY 2014/2015

Description

COMBINED FY 13/14  &  14/15 Totals

EMERGENCY PUMPING FACILITY PROJECT 

DROUGHT CONTINGENCY-EMERGENCY PUMPING FACILITY PROJECT 

Attachment A

Item #7 
Page 4


	______________________________________________________________________________
	Payment of Claims-Mar FY 14-15.pdf
	Sheet1

	2015.03.23_COMB Bd Min-jg.pdf
	Monday, March 23, 2015
	 Fisheries Committee Meeting, March 5, 2015: President Hanson noted that the Committee met with Tim Robinson, Fisheries Division Manager.  Information was reviewed on the annual monitoring reports; data sharing; the nexus between the USBR and tributa...
	 Operations Committee Meeting, March 6, 2015:  Director Francisco stated the Committee reviewed the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP); stating it was a very straight forward, very well thought-out plan and incorporated the suggestions that he and Direct...
	 USBR Site Inspection:  The remaining Member Unit survey and report was completed and has been forwarded to the USBR.  No remediation was found necessary according the Certified Cross Connection Inspector.
	 NP Elevator:  Shortly after inspection and permitting was received, it was discovered that a board within the control panel was faulty.  Due to the age of the panel, it was not included in the rehabilitation efforts, but deemed safely operable by CO...
	 Santa Barbara County Drought Task Force (DTF):  Project updates continue.
	 Encroachment:  COMB and County staff continue to work in concert to research and collect property owner information, some of which is rather old in nature and not located on modern resources, such as computerized records.
	 Drought Contingency Pumping Facility Project
	1) Construction Status: Pumps are tested and exercised monthly; the system remains in stand-by mode until operations become necessary; pipe retention options continue to be reviewed and a report outlining those options and resulting costs will go befo...
	2) Grant Funding:  The County of Santa Barbara is in the process of formally accepting the Proposition 84 Grant.  Invoice development for the Department of Water Resources (DWR) continues.
	 Infrastructure Improvement Plan (IIP):  This was distributed to Member Unit General Manager’s for review and comment.  These will be incorporated into the document, presented to the Administrative Committee, then the full Board for review.
	 COMB Office Buildings:  Modular office replacement options and analysis efforts continue.  Once finalized, the Administrative Committee will review the findings and present recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval.
	 Division Manager Comments:   Tim Robinson, Fisheries Division Manager, highlighted information from his report as included in the board packet.

	COMB-Fisheries-Program-Report-042715-1.pdf
	TO:    Randy Ward, General Manager

	GM Report 4-27-15.pdf
	EPFP Tracking-FY 14-15-Brd Pkt.pdf
	Drought-EPFP Summary FY 14-15





